



State of California Edmund G. Brown Jr., Governor

## Board of Chiropractic Examiners TELECONFERENCE MEETING MINUTES Licensing, Continuing Education & Public Relations Committee August 22, 2013 901 P Street, Suite 142A Sacramento, CA 95814

Teleconference Locations with Public Access Frank Ruffino

> 480 Alta Road San Diego, CA 92179 (619) 661-8654

## **Committee Members Present**

Heather Dehn, D.C., Chair Hugh Lubkin, D.C. Frank Ruffino

### Staff Present

Robert Puleo, Executive Officer Linda Shaw, Licensing/CE Manager

## Call to Order

Dr. Lubkin called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m.

## Roll Call

Dr. Lubkin called the roll. All committee members were present except Dr. Dehn.

The Committee moved to Agenda Item 3 – Recognition of International Applicants

# **Recognition of International Applicants**

Mr. Ray Bennett representing Council on Chiropractic Education (CCE) and Ms. Donna Liewer representing Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (FCLB) spoke on the recognition of out of country schools.

Dr. Dehn arrived at 2:10.

T (916) 263-5355 F (916) 327-0039 TT/TDD (800) 735-2929 Consumer Complaint Hotline (866) 543-1311 Board of Chiropractic Examiners 901 P Street, Suite 142A Sacramento, California 95814 www.chiro.ca.gov The Committee and CCE and FCLB representative had a lengthy discussion. Ms. Liewer will forward a copy of the Council on Chiropractic Education International's (CCE-I) Equivalence of the Accreditation Standards statement.

Dr. Dehn will contact the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners to inquire if Mr. Horace Elliott, Executive Vice President and/or C. Lesley Biggs, PhD., President of CCE-I can participate at our next Committee meeting. Dr. Dehn requested Mr. Puleo to review the regulations for possible modifications for recognition of international applicants.

The Committee moved to Agenda Item 6 - Future Agenda Items.

## **Future Agenda Items**

The Committee set the next meeting for October 3, 2013 at 2:00. Dr. Dehn and Dr. Lubkin will come to the Board office. Dr. Dehn will forward Mr. Puleo an agenda item for Public Relations.

The Committee moved to Agenda Item 2 – Approval of Minutes

# Approval of Minutes

# MOTION: MR. RUFFINO MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 18 2013 LICENSING, CONTINUING EDUCATION & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING SECOND: DR. LUBKIN SECONDED THE MOTION VOTE: 3-0

# MOTION CARRIED

The Committee moved to Agenda Item 5 – Procedure for Identifying and Auditing New Continuing Education Courses.

# Procedure of Identifying and Auditing Continuing Education Courses

Dr. Dehn identified several continuing education courses from last Committee meeting and new courses to be audited. She assigned various Board Members to each course.

The Committee moved to Agenda Item 5 – Public Comment.

# Public Comment None

# Adjournment

Dr. Dehn adjourned the meeting at 3:50 p.m.

# BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS LICENSING, CONTINUING EDUCATION & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

### REVIEWING REGULATIONS FOR POSSIBLE RECOGNITION OF INTERNATIONAL APPLICANTS

#### 313. Inducing Student to Practice Chiropractic.

No licensee of chiropractic in the State of California shall offer or cause to be offered to a student or prospective student of chiropractic any promise or inducement, either written or verbal, which may induce said student or prospective student to believe he or she, during the freshman, sophomore, junior or senior years, or within the time that he or she shall be a student in, and/or before graduation from chiropractic school or college, and/or before receiving a license from the board, may be legally employed in any chiropractic private office, or chiropractic school or college, to practice chiropractic. with or without compensation, and no student shall accept or rely upon any such promise or understanding except that junior or senior students only may, for professional instruction, be assigned to regular clinic practice, during regular clinic hours, in the clinic conducted upon the premises of a regularly incorporated chiropractic school or college, and then only when said clinic is in charge of a duly licensed chiropractor as clinic instructor. This section does not apply to students and doctors who participate in preceptorship programs sponsored by chiropractic institutions holding status with the Council on Chiropractic Education or seeking such status. Violation of this rule by any student shall be deemed to be also a violation of Section 312 hereof.

#### 331.1. Approval and Eligibility.

(a) A school which initially meets the requirements of these rules shall be first provisionally approved. No school will be finally approved until a provisional program has been in operation for at least two years.

(b) No school shall be provisionally approved until it shall present competent evidence of its organizational and financial ability to attain the minimum educational requirements set forth by these rules and institutional goals set forth in its application.

(c) No school shall be provisionally approved unless there is a reasonable need for such school in the geographical area in which it is proposed to locate.

(d) No school shall be provisionally approved until competent evidence of compliance with the requirements of Section 29023(a)(2) of the Education Code is filed with the Board.

#### 331.2. Inspection and Survey.

(a) No school shall be approved, provisionally or finally, until it has been inspected by the Board or its duly authorized representative, including but not limited to the Council on Chiropractic Education, and is found to be in compliance with the rules herein set forth.

(b) Each school shall permit to the Board or its authorized representatives unhampered opportunity to inspect the school's facilities, interview its entire faculty and management, examine student, teaching, grading, performance and graduation records, and inspect and audit, for cause, at the school's expense, the financial and corporate records.

1

#### 331.8. Faculty.

All faculty members shall meet the standards of the Council on Chiropractic Education.

#### 331.11. Scholastic Regulations.

(a) Admission.

(1) Each school shall have a committee on admissions and credentials. The admission of students shall be in the hands of a responsible officer who is a member of the committee and his decision shall be subject to the approval of the committee.

(2) No applicant shall be admitted to any school until he has been personally interviewed for the purpose of determining his character, scholastic aptitude, mental and physical fitness to study and practice. When a great geographic distance precludes personal interview, the same information, supported by affidavits and photographs, may be substituted for the personal interview.

(3) Documentary evidence of preliminary education must be obtained and kept on file. All transcripts of other schools must be obtained directly from such schools.

(4) It is strongly recommended by the Board that an entrance examination compiled and administered by recognized testing agencies (e.g., A.C.T., S.A.T.) be required of all students prior to matriculation in order to prove their ability to do college level work.

(b) Date of Matriculation. No student shall be matriculated at a later date than one week immediately following the advertised date of the commencement of the school term.
(c) Qualifications of Students. No student shall be matriculated in an approved school unless he is of good moral character and is without major physical deficiencies, except as provided in Section 8.1 of the Act.

(d) Professional Education. Students shall not be matriculated in any school approved by the board unless they possess, and submit to the school upon their application for matriculation, either:

(1) A diploma from a standard high school or other institution of standard secondary school grade evidencing completion by the student of a four (4) year course, or
(2) A certificate from the board stating that the student has submitted proof, satisfactory to the board, of education equivalent in training power to a high school course. The certificate shall bear a date prior to the applicant's matriculation date in any school approved by the board.

(3) A student who seeks admission in any school approved by the Board after November 3, 1976, shall be subject to the following: The candidate must have completed, with a satisfactory scholastic record, at least 60 semester hours or an equivalent number of quarter hours in prechiropractic subjects at a college listed in the U.S. Office of Education "Education Directory--Higher Education." The specific prechiropractic subjects and hor requirements shall be in accordance with the standards adopted by the Council on Chiropractic Education.

(e) Advanced Standing.

(1) Applicants for admission to advanced standing shall be required to furnish evidence to the school:

(A) That they can meet the same entrance requirements as candidates for the first year class;

(B) That courses equivalent in content and quality to those given in the admitting school in the year or years preceding that to which admission is desired have been satisfactorily completed;

(C) That the work was done in a chiropractic college acceptable to the committee on admissions of the college; and

(D) That the candidate has a letter of recommendation from the dean of the school from which transfer is made.

(2) Credits for work done in colleges of liberal arts and sciences will be allowed based on the regulations of the Council on Chiropractic Education.

(3) Credits for basic science subjects on the professional level shall be in accordance with the provisions of the regulations of the Council on Chiropractic Education.

(4) A student desiring to re-enter the college after a lapse in attendance of one or more years shall fulfill the entrance requirements applying to the class which he seeks to enter. Students whose education was interrupted by service in the armed forces are exempt from this requirement.

(5) For all such students admitted to advance standing there will be, therefore, on file with the registrar the same documents as required for admission to the first-year class and in addition a certified transcript of work completed, together with a letter of honorary dismissal from the college from which transfer was made.

(6) No candidate for a degree shall be accepted for less than one full academic year of resident study.

(f) Attendance. In order to obtain credit for a course, a student shall have been present in class at least 90 percent of the time and shall have received a passing letter grade. When the absence exceeds 10 percent, the student shall be automatically dropped from the class.

If the absences have been due to illness or other excusable reasons and if evidence of these reasons can be submitted, the student may apply for readmission through the dean's office and may be given credit for attendance upon the recommendation of his instructor and completion of course requirements.

Students shall be required to spend the last academic year of the course in residence in the college which confers the degree.

(g) Promotion.

(1) Promotion from one school term to another should be by recommendation of the instructors and consent of the committee on credentials or other similar committee. The decision should be based upon careful evaluation of the student's attendance,

application, conduct and grades in quizzes and examinations. In other words, the final standing of the student in each subject shall be based upon the composite judgment of the responsible instructors in that department, and not solely upon the result of written examinations.

(2) A student failing in any subject in a school term should be required to repeat the subject.

(h) Requirements for Graduation. The requirements for admission to the school shall have been fulfilled and the candidate, in addition to scholastic qualitative requirements, shall have completed a minimum quantitative requirement of 4,400 hours of instruction in four academic years of nine months each. The last year shall have been spent in the school granting the degree. The candidate shall have complied with all the regulations of the school and be recommended for the degree by the faculty.

(i) Special (Graduate of An Approved Chiropractic School) or Unclassified Subject. Persons so registered may not be a candidate for a degree. If they desire to become candidates, they shall satisfy the usual requirements for admission as well as the degree requirement. No work done under this classification will be accepted for credit beyond 90 days from the date of matriculation. Holders of a valid chiropractic degree are exempt from this requirement. (j) Degree. The degree conferred for completion of professional undergraduate work shall be Doctor of Chiropractic (D.C.).

#### 331.13. Physical Facilities.

(a) General: Each school shall own, or enjoy the assured use of a physical plant large enough to accommodate classrooms, lecture rooms, laboratories, a clinic, a library and administrative and faculty offices. Each school shall meet and maintain the standards and requirements established by or under the authority of the laws of the State of California governing educational institutions and all applicable city and county ordinances wherein the school is located and shall maintain competent evidence of such compliance, for examination by the Board.

(b) Administrative Offices: The administrative offices shall provide adequate office space for faculty members.

There shall be space available for faculty conferences.

All furnishings shall be serviceable and functional and there shall be sufficient office equipment, subject to Board approval, to efficiently manage the business of the school. There shall be fireproof storage for all records and documents required by the Chiropractic Initiative Act, statute, or regulations.

All administrative offices shall meet the standards and requirements incorporated by subparagraph (a) above.

(c) Classrooms: There shall be sufficient number and size of classrooms to separately accommodate the graded classes in 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th year classes. No two or more subjects shall be taught in the same classroom simultaneously. No two or more student classes (1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th year) shall be taught in the same classroom simultaneously.

Classrooms shall be located where there is quiet and freedom from interruption and distraction.

All classrooms shall be furnished with audio-visual aids appropriate to the subject matter being taught, and desks and chairs or tablet armchairs. There shall be effective shades to darken rooms equipped with visual projection apparatus.

All classrooms shall meet the standards and requirements incorporated by subparagraph (a) above.

(d) Laboratories: Laboratories shall be well lighted and ventilated and shall be equipped for the practical work in human dissection, histology, chemistry, physiology, bacteriology, pathology, laboratory diagnosis, roentgenology, physiotherapy and chiropractic technique.

Anatomy and pathology laboratories shall contain standard equipment. No more than ten (10) students shall be assigned per table. Sinks should be equipped with wrist action or foot pedal valves, and supplied in a sufficient number. Human cadavers and specimens for individual and small group demonstrations shall be supplied. If human cadavers are not available, or state law prohibits their use, schools must obtain prior written approval from this Board.

Microscopic laboratories shall have one microscope and one desk light for each two (2) students in the class.

Chiropractic technique laboratories shall be equipped with one chiropractic adjusting table for every four (4) students in the class.

Actual student experience with X-ray phantom or equivalent for all areas of the body shall be necessary.

Additionally, all laboratories shall meet the standards and requirements incorporated in subparagraph (a) above.

(f) Teaching Aids and Equipment: For the subject of physiotherapy there shall be sufficient generally recognized equipment for classroom and clinic purposes (to include sine galvanic, ultrasound, diathermy, ultraviolet, heat, cold, percussion, and transaction). For the practical work and physical diagnosis students shall be required to

own the ordinary and usual diagnostic instruments, including, but not limited to, thermometers, stethoscopes, sphygmomanometers, oto-ophthalmoscope examination sets, and orthopedic-neurological examination instruments. Each school shall own and teach the use of the current standard diagnostic instruments and a list of same shall be made available to the Board upon request. For classroom demonstration and visual education aids, each school shall own charts, mannequins, skeletons, bone collections, anatomical and embryological models, stereopticons, balopticons, micro-projections, and video players or similar projection equipment. The film and slide library shall be constantly augmented by the addition of new material.

(g) Library: A library shall be provided for the use of the student body. The minimum requirements for a library are:

(1) Operation of the library shall be under the direct supervision of a full-time librarian holding a degree in library science.

(2) The library shall be open to students a minimum of eight (8) hours per day. It shall have room available for study purposes to accommodate at least ten (10) percent of the enrolled students at one time. Hours shall be posted.

(3) The library volumes shall be cataloged, using a generally accepted system.

(4) The library shall consist of a minimum of 5,000 volumes of which 2,000 shall be less than ten years of age. Only cataloged scientific volumes which are of interest to the published curriculum of the school can be counted as library volumes. Unbound journals and periodicals shall not be counted in determining compliance with this rule.

(5) Each school shall conduct a program of student orientation as to the use of the library and class assignments involving the use of the library.

(h) Clinic: Each school shall operate a general out-patient clinic where the senior students will obtain actual experience, practical knowledge and skill in:

(1) Diagnosis, including physical examination, palpation, spinal analysis, clinical pathological, laboratory findings, X-ray, and tentative and working diagnoses.

(2) Adjustive technique, dietetics, and psychotherapy for the care or prevention of disease in accordance with Section 7 of the Act.

Such a clinic shall at all times be under the supervision of a clinician who meets the standards of the Council on Chiropractic Education.

The minimum requirements of a clinic are:

(A) A reception room with a minimum seating capacity for ten (10) persons.

(B) A minimum of five (5) patient dressing rooms that are equipped with at least curtains to ensure privacy.

(C) An administration area wherein at least one full-time secretary shall be located and patient files shall be maintained.

(D) A minimum of one (1) office for each faculty member supervising the clinic with a minimum of two (2) such offices.

(E) Separate lavatories for men and women with a minimum of one (1) each.

(F) A minimum of one (1) physical examination room for every ten (10) students concurrently present and enrolled in the clinic.

(G) A minimum of one (1) chiropractic adjusting table for every five (5) students performing adjustments on clinic patients with a minimum of five (5) such tables.
(H) A minimum of one (1) X-ray examination room that is equipped with at least one (1) X-ray machine that has a capacity of no less than 125 KV plus 300 M.A. There shall also be an X-ray developing room that is equipped with the appropriate and necessary film processing equipment as required by the Board. This room may be an area within the X-ray procedure room or shall be located in the immediate area in the same building of such X-ray procedure room. A list of minimal X-ray equipment which shall be used must be obtained from the Board.

(I) A lab room equipped with a sterilization facility, unless waived in writing by the Board. (J) In addition to the requirements of section 331.12(e), each student's work, conduct, reliability and personality shall be evaluated in writing by his or her supervising teacher and such evaluation shall become a part of the student's record and shall be available for inspection by the Board.

(i) Operation and Maintenance of the Physical Plant. In addition to the requirement of subparagraph (a) above, each school shall operate and maintain all physical equipment in good repair.

Lockers shall be available for student use.

## 331.15. Violations or Failure to Comply.

(a) Any violation of these rules, or failure to comply with them, shall be grounds to revoke approval of any school, and to refuse approval to any school, or to any applicant.
(b) If any school provisionally approved or approved by the Board undergoes fundamental changes in its administration, organization or stated objectives, provisional approval or approval shall be suspended until such time as the Board again appraises the institution.

Such changes include but are not limited to change in ownership of the school or its assets or noncompliance with Section 29032(a)(2) of the Education Code.

(c) In the event an approved school or a school applying for provisional approval fails to maintain or meet the required standards, the institution will be given a bill of particulars and granted 60 days to comply; in the event such corrections are not made within said time, the institution will be removed from the approved list or denied provisional approval.

(d) Institutions rejected or removed from the approved list may apply for reconsideration or reinstatement in accordance with Rule 331.

## 364. Exemptions and Reduction of Requirement.

A licensee may qualify for a full or partial exemption, from the continuing education requirements of Section 361 if a licensee meets any of the criterion listed below: (a) A licensee who holds a license on inactive status is not required to complete continuing education on an annual basis; however, they must provide proof of completion of the required continuing education hours prior to activating their license as specified in Section 371(f);

(b) A new licensee is exempt from continuing education requirements in the year of initial licensure;

(c) An instructor who has taught for one (1) year and currently teaches core curriculum courses for more than eight (8) credit hours per week at any Council on Chiropractic Education accredited college for at least six (6) months during any license renewal period year shall be exempt from continuing education.

(d) A licensee who teaches a board-approved continuing education course may earn one (1) hour of continuing education credit for each hour of lecture up to 24 hours per year.

(e) Notwithstanding Section 361(c), a licensee who is unable to attend continuing education courses due to a physical disability and provides written certification from a primary health care provider may earn all 24 hours of continuing education credits for the period of the license renewal through Board-approved distance learning courses as defined in Section 363.1.

(f) A licensee who participates as an examiner for the entire part four portion of the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners (NBCE) examinations shall receive a maximum of six (6) hours of continuing education credit for each examination period conducted by the NBCE during the license renewal period. The licensee must provide written certification from the NBCE confirming the licensee has met the requirements of this subsection.

(g) An active Board Member. A professional board member who has served one full year on the Board of Chiropractic Examiners shall be exempt from the continuing education requirement in each year of board member service.

(h) Notwithstanding Section 361(c), a licensee on active duty with a branch of the armed forces of the United States shall be permitted to take all twenty-four (24) hours of required continuing education through board-approved distance learning courses as defined in Section 363.1.

7

# NEW PROVIDERS OFFERING CE COURSES

New CE Provider	Course Title	Course Type	Course Dates
Lisa C. Moore, DC	Aromatic Chiropractic (12 hours)	Classroom	Oct. 5 – Fair Oaks, CA (tentative)
Medical Minds in Motion	<ul> <li>Kinesiology Taping: Integrating Movement Assessments &amp; Corrective Exercise Strategies (7 hours)</li> </ul>	Classroom	Oct 19 – Sacramento, Thousand Oaks Oct 20 – Modesto, Long Beach Nov 16 – Concord, Glendale Nov 17 – Santa Rosa, San Bernardino Dec 14 – Fresno, San Diego Dec 15 – Bakersfield, Carlsbad/Vista

# CONTINUING EDUCATION AUDIT UPDATE

У

Board Member	Course Provider	Course Title	Course Type Given Online Access	Completion
Dr. Lubkin	The Wise DC, Inc.	Ethics (2 hours)	Online – Aug 26 45 day access-expires Oct 10	Pending
Dr. Lubkin	DCHours.com	Chiropractic Ethics (2 hours)	Online – Aug 26	Pending
Dr. Lubkin	The Institute for Integrative Medicine	Functional Neurology and Neurotransmitters (10 hours)	Online – Sept 17	Pending
Frank Ruffino	The Wise DC, Inc.	Ethics (2 hours)	Online – Aug 26 45 day access-expires Oct 10	Pending
Frank Ruffino	DCHours.com	Chiropractic Ethics (2 hours)	Online – Aug 26	Pending
Dr. Dehn	DCHours.com	<ul> <li>Passive Care Modalities Part 1 (1 hour)</li> <li>Passive Care Modalities Part 2 (1 hour)</li> <li>Basic MRI Part 1 (1 hour)</li> <li>Basic MRI Part 2 (1 hour)</li> <li>Basic MRI Part 3 (1 hour)</li> <li>Function Based Care Part 1 (1 hour)</li> <li>Function Based Care Part 2 (1 hour)</li> </ul>	Online Aug 26	Pending
Dr. Dehn	The Institute for Integrative Medicine	Herbals, Phytonutrients & Complementary Alternative Medicine (10 hours)	Online – Sept 17	Pending
Dr. Dehn	Lynne Sullivan, DC	Ethics and Law Seminar	Classroom - Sept 26	Pending
Dr. Azzolino	The Institute for Integrative Medicine	Functional Neurology and Neurotransmitters (10 hours)	Online – Sept 17	Pending
Dr. Columbu	Hollywood Community Hospital of Brotman	Comprehensive Spine Care Update	Classroom - Sept 7	Completed